
From: Stratton, Sophie
To: Liam Connors
Subject: Response to Public Records Request re Use of Force Reviews
Date: Monday, July 18, 2022 1:24:00 PM
Attachments: 2022-07-18 AGO VPR Use of Force Letter.pdf

Good afternoon Mr. Connors,
Please see the attached letter regarding your May 16, 2022, public records request. I will send a
OneDrive Link shortly with the responsive records. Please let me know if you have any further questions.
Thanks, take care,
Sophie Stratton
Assistant Attorney General
Office of the Attorney General | Criminal Division
109 State Street
Montpelier, VT 05609
(802) 828-5512
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STATE OF VERMONT 

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL 
109 STATE STREET 

MONTPELIER, VT 
05609-1001 

 
July 18, 2022 

Liam Connors 
VPR & Vermont PBS  
365 Troy Avenue 
Colchester, VT 05446 
(802) 503-8071 
lconnors@vpr.org  
 

 Re: Public Records Request of May 16, 2022 

Dear Mr. Connors: 

I write in response to your public records act request dated May 16, 2022, in which you 
requested: 
 

- A list of all use of force incidents and police shootings reviewed by the 
Attorney General’s office between 12/1/2021 and 5/16/2022; and 

- The use of force investigations opened by the AGO on:  
6/6/2018 
6/2/2019 
6/8/2019 
1/2/2020 

 
It is my understanding that our office has provided you with a list of all use of force 
incidents and police shootings reviewed by the Attorney General’s office between 12/1/2021 
and 5/16/2022. Please see the attached records in response to your request for information 
on use of force investigations on the dates listed above.  
 
Please note that significant portions of these records have been redacted. Pursuant to 
1 V.S.A. § 317(c)(5)(A)(iii), records are exempt if disclosure “could reasonably be expected to 
constitute an unwarranted invasion of personal privacy.” The records you request contain 
information that could lead to the identification of victims and witnesses, including where 
they work and live, and their personal and medical information. Further, these records 
indicate that a prosecution review was conducted regarding police officers involved and no 
criminal charges were filed against them. Therefore, under this exemption, their privacy 
interests must be considered as well. 
 
Please also be advised that, pursuant to 13 V.S.A. § 7607, the response to an inquiry from 
any member of the public regarding a sealed record shall be that “NO CRIMINAL RECORD 
EXISTS.” Any records provided in response to your request comply with this statutory 



provision.  
 
If you have any questions or need any further information, please let me know. Please also 
be advised that to the extent that this letter constitutes a denial of your request, you may 
appeal to the Deputy Attorney General. Any appeal should be in writing and addressed to: 
 

Joshua Diamond 
Deputy Attorney General 
109 State Street 
Montpelier, VT 05609-1001. 

 
Sincerely, 
 

 /s/ Sophie Stratton 
 Sophie Stratton 
 Assistant Attorney General 
 Office of the Attorney General  
 109 State Street 
 Montpelier, VT 05609-1001 
 (802) 828-5512 
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STATE OF VERMONT 

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL 
109 STATE STREET 
MONTPELIER, VT 

05609-1001 

 
 

April 9, 2021 

BY ELECTRONIC MAIL 
Detective  
Vermont State Police Headquarters 
45 State Drive  
Waterbury, VT 05671-1300 

 
 
 Re:  In Re  of St. Albans PD, VSP Incident  
  Allegation of  
 
Dear Det : 
 
The Vermont Attorney General’s Office has received and reviewed the investigation materials provided to 
us by your department. After carefully considering these materials, the Attorney General’s Office is 
declining to institute criminal charges against  in the above referenced incident and matter. 
If there is any additional information, materials, or other evidence that you feel is pertinent to this case 
and which you have not already provided, please send it directly to me at the address listed above. 
 

Sincerely, 
 

 

Assistant Attorney General 
 
Cc:  
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VERMONT STATE POLICE 
Bureau of Criminal Investigation 

Investigative Actions Narrative 

 
 
 
 
Investigative actions taken on June 5, 2020 by Det.  
 
Case#:  
 
Officer: Detective  
 
Persons Interviewed: 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
Narrative: 
 
On June 5, 2020, at approximately 1315 hours, I met with  at 
the New Haven barracks. The purpose of the meeting was to allow  to view the video(s) from the 
use of force incident on June 2, 2019 involving the   
 
At the conclusion of our meeting,  informed me that    
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VERMONT STATE POLICE 
Bureau of Criminal Investigation 

Investigative Actions Narrative 

 
 
 
 
Investigative actions taken on June 18, 2020 by Det.  
 
Case#:  
 
Officer: Detective  
 
Persons Interviewed: 

 
 

 
 

 
Exhibits: 1- CD audio recorded statement of  
  Sworn Audio Recorded Statement Form. (1-page) 
   
  
 
Narrative: 
 
On June 18, 2020, at approximately 1006 hours, I met with  at her 
residence located at . The purpose of the meeting was to interview her 
about an incident she was involved in on June 2, 2019, with members of the St. Albans Police 
Department.  
 

 provided a sworn audio recorded statement and the following is a synopsis of the interview and 
for actual dialogue and statements made the reader should refer to the digital audio recording.  
 

 explained that she was driving,  
  felt that when the police were trying to stop her, 

they would tow her vehicle, therefore she continued to drive to her house. While speaking with  
  said that  he “fish hooked” her and threw her to 

the ground, to prevent her from . As a result of the incident  said she 
suffered lacerations in her mouth, bruises on her face, and a concussion.  added that she had lost 
consciousness after hitting her head.  explained that  and were for 
her   
which was located inside of her purse.  stated that she had the in her hand and was 

 and didn’t think anything of it at first, but later realized she should have 
said something to the police officer.    
 

 said she was  and the reason for the visit was because of 
her concussion and the lacerations in her mouth. While inside the hospital,  explained that  

 was talking with another officer and he flexed his muscle, pointed to it, laughed, and was 
pointing at  When talking about her injuries,  described her pain level on a scale of 1 to 10 (1 



2 
 

being no pain and 10 being the worst pain she has ever endured), she described her head injury as a “5” 
and added that it hurt her off and on for about a week.  said that the lacerations inside her mouth 
did not hurt, however, she could taste blood. She added that they were sore for a couple of days.  
 
After being seen at the hospital,   

 
 

 added that she had made a formal complaint with the St. Albans Police Department, 
approximately one month after the incident. She explained that she felt nervous and thought she would 
be harassed if she made a complaint. After speaking with someone from “Legal Aid,” she decided to file 
the complaint.  said she went to the St. Albans Police Department, filled out a written complaint, 
and the guy who took her report said that the Chief would contact her if he had any other questions.  

 said she has never heard anything about her complaint.  
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VERMONT STATE POLICE 
Bureau of Criminal Investigation 

Investigative Narrative 

 
 
 
 
Case#:  
 
Officer: Detective  
 
Complaint: Review use of force by members of the St. Albans Police Department on June 2, 2019, during 
the   
 
Exhibits:  (1) DVD - St.Albans Police Department video(s) 

(1) CD -  interview 
Citation (1 page) 

   Patient Visit information (1 page) 
  

  
Letter from  (1 page) 
Email from  (2 pages) 
Sworn Audio Recorded Statement Form (1 page) 
(2) Investigative Actions narrative (3 pages) 
 

 
Narrative: 
 
On May 8, 2020, I was informed by Detective , that I was being assigned 
an investigation, involving a police officer from the St. Albans Police Department. I received an email 
from , providing with 8 pages of documents, which included a copy of  

, a two page  which was authored by , and 5 
pages from   
 
On May 18, 2020,  provided me with a DVD in connection with this investigation. The DVD 
contains 17 sound clips (dispatch communication), 4 watch guard videos, 1 AXON body camera video, 
and a PDF file titled  
 
Upon reviewing    

  
 I learned the following:  

 
On June 2, 2019  was on duty for the Saint Albans Police Department. During 

 patrol duties he observed a vehicle, specifically a  
, traveling on  Street, a public highway as defined by Vermont Title 23, 

within the City of St. Albans.    
  added that the vehicle was being operated by  

 was described as driving south on  and stopping at a set of railroad tracks that 
had a flashing red signal, due to a train being stopped at the right edge of the roadway.  had 
been waived through the intersection by the conductor, however, did not see the conductor waive  
through,   described that he had 
“turned around on  and attempted to catch up to her.  wrote that  “quickly darted 
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STATE OF VERMONT 

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL 
109 STATE STREET 
MONTPELIER, VT 

05609-1001 

 
 

May 10, 2021 

BY ELECTRONIC MAIL 
 
 

 
 

 
 Re:  
       Allegation of Simple Assault on  
 
Dear  
 
The Vermont Attorney General’s Office has received and reviewed the investigation materials provided to 
us by your department. After carefully considering these materials, the Attorney General’s Office is 
declining to institute criminal charges against  in the above referenced 
incident and matter. If there is any additional information, materials, or other evidence that you feel is 
pertinent to this case and which you have not already provided, please send it directly to me at the address 
listed above. 
 

Sincerely, 
 

 

Assistant Attorney General 
 
Cc:  
  
 
 




